I am using the pen.
Am I using the pen?
You are using the pen.
Are you using the pen?
the pen = what
What are you using?
…what you are using…
…the pen that you are using…
The pen that you are using is red.
I am using the pen that you are using.
Am I using the pen that you are using?
Are you using the pen that I am using?
You are using the pen that I am using.
You don’t use the pen that I am using.
You can’t use the pen that I am using.

I have arrived on time.
Have I arrived on time?
She has arrived on time.
Has she arrived on time?
she = who
Who has arrived on time?
…who has arrived on time…
She (does go) goes home.
She can go home.
Can she go home?
Who has arrived on time can go home.
Can who has arrived on time go home?
…the person who has arrived on time…
The person who has arrived on time can go home.
Can the person who has arrived on time go home?
I think that the person who has arrived on time can go home.
She (does think) thinks that the person who has arrived on time can go home.
Does she think that the person who has arrived on time can go home?
I am talking with her.
Am I talking with her?
her = who
Who am I talking with?
(with her = with whom
With whom am I talking?)
…who I am talking with…
She (does think) thinks that the person who has arrived on time can go home.
Who I am talking with thinks that the person who has arrived on time can go home.
She thinks that he can go home.

I am still.
I am.
It is me.
It is still me.
Is it still me?
I (do) say one sentence.
I (do) have to say one sentence.
She says one sentence.
She (does have) has to say one sentence.
Does she have to say one sentence?
she = who
Who (does have) has to say one sentence?
…who (does have) has to say one sentence…
…the person who has to say one sentence…
Is it still me?
Is the person who has to say one sentence still me?
Is the person who has to cook a soup still me



still
stella
interstellar
install
still – álló (helyzetű), mozdulatlan(ul), változatlan(ul)

A table is.
A table is there.
There is a table.

Next week, I have to go to work in the afternoon.
I (do) have to go to work in the afternoon next week.
Do I have to go to work in the afternoon next week?
to work = where
in the afternoon = when
next week = when
Where do I have to go next week?
…where I (do) have to go next week…
…the place where I have to go next week…
You (do) know the place where I have to go next week.
She (does know) knows the place where I have to go next week.
Who I am talking with knows the place where I have to go next week.
The person who I am talking with (does know) knows the place where I have to go next week.
Does the person who I am talking with know the place where I have to go next week?
(Does the person know, who I am talking with, the place where I have to go next week?
Does Frank know, who I am talking with, who I am talking with?)

I am here.
I will be here.
…that I will be here…
You (do) know that I will be here.
You (did know) knew that I would be here.

It is hard for me now.
…at times like this…
Is it hard for me now?
for me = for who
For who is it hard now?
…that it is hard for me now…
…that it will be hard for me now…
I (do) think that it will be hard for me (now).
I (did think) thought that it would be hard for me.
…that I thought that it would be hard for me…
…if I thought that it would be hard for me...
I don’t know if I thought that it would be hard for me.
I don’t know if I said that I would buy ham.



That is hard for me now.
…that that is hard for me now…


Reported speech – közvetített beszéd

“I am here.”
He (does say) says that he is here.
He (did say) said that he was there.

“Are you here?”
He (does ask) asks if I am here.
He (did ask) asked if I was there.

download – downloaded = (did download)
come – came = (did come)

You (do) arrive at 8.
Do you arrive at 8?
at 8 = when
When do you arrive?
…when you (do) arrive…
I will go home when you arrive.
…if you (do) arrive…
I will go home if you (do) arrive. – 1st 
Haza fogok menni, ha te megérkezel.
I would go home if you (did arrive) arrived. – 2nd 
Hazamennék, ha te megérkeznél.
I would have gone home if you had arrived. – 3rd 
Hazamentem volna, ha te megérkeztél volna.

I am healthy.
…if I am healthy…
…if I was healthy… / …if I were healthy…
If I was healthy, I would go to work next week.
If I had been healthy, I would have gone to work.
Had I been healthy, I would have gone to work.
I would have gone to work if I had been healthy.


I don’t understand it.
I (will not) won’t understand it.
You (do) explain this to me.
…if you explain this to me…
I will understand it if you (do) explain it to me.
I won’t understand it if you don’t explain it to me.
I wouldn’t understand it if you didn’t explain it to me.
I wouldn’t have understood it if you hadn’t explained it to me.

I will X this if you (do) Y.
I would X this if you (did) Y-d.
I would have X-d if you had Y-d.

I wouldn’t have understood it if you hadn’t explained it to me.
You wouldn’t have understood it if I hadn’t explained it to you.
Wouldn’t you have understood it if I hadn’t explained it to you?
You would have understood it.
You should have understood it.
He should have understood it.
Should he have understood it?
Shouldn’t he have understood it?
it = what
What should he have understood?
…what he should have understood…
…the thing that he should have understood…
…the person who I am talking with…
…the thing that the person who I am talking with should have understood…
This is the thing that the person who I am talking with should have understood.
He should have understood it.
He could have understood it.
…that he could have understood it…
…the fact that he could have understood it…
He is smart.
…that he is smart…
This (does mean) means that he is smart.
The fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.
Does the fact that he could have understood it mean that he is smart?
…that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart…
I don’t think…
I wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.
She wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.
I am working with him.
I have been working with him.
Have I been working with him?
him = who
Who have I been working with?
…who I have been working with…
…the colleague who I have been working with…
She wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.
The colleague who I have been working with wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.

The sky is blue.
Is the sky blue?
Why is the sky blue?
…why the sky is blue…
The colleague who I have been working with wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood it (does mean) means that he is smart.
The colleague who I have been working with wouldn’t think that the fact that he could have understood why the sky is blue means that he is smart.
It means it.

progress
make progress 
We are making a lot of progress.
We are going to make a lot of progress.
Are we going to make a lot of progress?
a lot of progress = how much progress
How much progress are we going to make?
…how much progress we are going to make…
We don’t know how much progress we are going to make.
We didn’t know how much progress we were going to make.
She didn’t know how much progress we were going to make.
She (does come) comes inside.
She (did come) came inside.
Did she come inside?
she = who
Who came inside?
…who came inside…
…the teacher who came inside…
She didn’t know how much progress we were going to make.
The teacher who came inside didn’t know how much progress we were going to make.
Didn’t the teacher who came inside know how much progress we were going to make?


I would have said it. – Elmondtam volna.
I would say it. – Elmondanám.
I will say it. – El fogom mondani.
I should have said it. – El kellett volna mondanom.
I should say it. – El kellene mondanom.
I shall say it. – El kell mondanom.
I could have said it. – El tudtam volna mondani.
I could say it. – El tudnám mondani.
I can say it. – El tudom mondani.
I might have said it. – Lehet, hogy elmondtam.
I might say it. – Lehet, hogy elmondom.
I may say it. – Lehet, hogy el fogom modnani.
I must have said it. – Biztos, hogy elmondtam.
I must say it. – Biztos, hogy elmondom.



I am 50.
Am I 50?
50 = how old
How old am I?
…how old I am…

…that I am 50…
You (do) think that I am 50.
Do you think that I am 50?
50 = how old
How old do you think that I am?
How tall do you think that I am?
How tall do you think that it is?
How long do you think that this street is?
How good do you think that this has to be?

…how good you think that this has to be…
I don’t care how good you think (that) this has to be.

Kötőmód

Jelen
I think that you are here.
I say …
I know …
Jövő
I suggest that you be here.
I command
I demand
Múlt
I wish you were here.

…to be here…
To be here has been good.
It has been good to be here.
Has it been good to be here?
good = how
How has it been to be here?
…how it has been to be here…
I don’t care how it has been to be here.
I don’t care how it has been for you to be here.
I didn’t care how it had been for you to be here.

How was it?
…how it was…


I go home.
főnévi igenév / célhatározó:
· to go home – hazamenni
határozó:
· going home – hazamenvén (útközben)
főnév
…going home… - …hazamenés…


Going home is dangerous.
I am thinking about going home.

I have learnt a book going home.
[bookmark: _GoBack]Going home, I have learnt a book.
 











He must have understood it.
…that he must have understood it…






